REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 1 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787 Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us



# COUNTY OF MOHAVE NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS RFP No. 21P03 MEDICAL EXAMINER SERVICES

INTERESTED OFFERORS MAY DOWNLOAD A COPY OF THIS SOLICITATION FROM THE MOHAVE COUNTY PROCUREMENT WEB SITE AT: http://procurementbids.mohavecounty.us

INTERNET ACCESS IS AVAILABLE AT ALL PUBLIC LIBRARIES. INTERESTED OFFERORS MAY ALSO OBTAIN A COPY OF THIS SOLICITATION BY CALLING (928) 753-0752.

Competitive sealed proposals for the specified material or service shall be received by the Procurement Department, 700 W. Beale Street, 1<sup>st</sup> Floor East, Kingman, Arizona 86401, until the time and date cited. Proposals received by the correct time and date shall be publicly recorded. The Mohave County Procurement Department takes no responsibility for informing recipients of changes to the original solicitation document. Failure to submit amendments with the solicitation response may be grounds for deeming submittal non-responsive.

Proposals must be in the actual possession of the Procurement Department at the location indicated, on or prior to the exact time and date indicated above. Late proposals shall not be considered. The prevailing clock shall be the Mohave County Procurement Department clock.

Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope. The Request for Proposals <u>number, bidder's name and address</u> shall be clearly indicated <u>on the outside</u> of the envelope. All proposals must be completed in ink or typewritten. Written questions regarding this RFP must be received by the Procurement Department no later than **June 8, 2021**. Questions must be addressed to the Procurement Officer listed below.

PROPOSAL DUE DATE: June 15, 2021 AT 2:00 PM, LOCAL AZ TIME PROPOSAL LOCATION: Mohave County Procurement Department

700 W. Beale Street, 1st Floor East

Kingman, Arizona 86402

PRE-PROPOSAL TELECONFERENCE DATE: June 1, 2021

TIME: 10:00 AM, LOCAL AZ TIME

Toll-free Number: (888) 468-1195

Participant PIN: 901789

QUESTIONS SHALL BE DIRECTED TO: Morgan Michaels,

PROCUREMENT OFFICER SENIOR

(928) 753-0752, EXTENSION 1

May 14, 2021 and May 21, 2021 Morgan.Michaels@MohaveCounty.us

Mohave County Procurement Department 700 W. Beale Street, 1st Floor East | P.O. Box

7000

Kingman, Arizona 86402-7000

ISSUE DATE: May 14, 2021

Publish Date(s)

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 2 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

#### Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Intent	3
Compensation	3
Scope of Services	4
Instructions to Offerors	12
Special Terms and Conditions	18
Standard Terms and Conditions	24
Forms and Exhibits	33

- Offer Form
- Form 1, Title Page
- Form 2, References
- Form 3, Price Proposal

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 3 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

#### 1. <u>INTENT:</u>

- 1.1. It is the intent of Mohave County to enter into an agreement with a qualified, licensed Medical Examiner to serve as the Mohave County Medical Examiner and perform forensic pathology services for Mohave County. The Medical Examiner shall be a licensed physician certified in pathology and skilled at forensic pathology and be in good standing with the Arizona Medical Board or the Arizona Board of Osteopathic Examiners in Medicine and Surgery. Mohave County will accept proposals from Physicians not licensed in Arizona; however, should the Physician be awarded the Medical Examiner Contract, they will be required to obtain an Arizona license as soon as one can be issued by the licensing entity. While awaiting Arizona licensure, the Physician will be required to work under an Arizona Licensed Physician. The sole cost of Arizona licensure will be borne by the Medical Examiner and not Mohave County.
- 1.2. The Medical Examiner shall be knowledgeable in the area(s) of public health emergency response, and have demonstrated knowledge in mass casualty or fatality response. Offerors that do not have the qualifications required as documented in this RFP must clearly state this limitation in their proposal.
- 1.3. The Medical Examiner shall be responsible to provide Medical Examiner services on a twenty-four (24) hour per day, seven (7) day per week basis, to include but not necessarily be limited to all necessary staff, services, backup coverage, supplies, investigators, equipment, transportation and facilities.

#### 2. COMPENSATION:

- 2.1. Medical Examiner shall be paid the first Friday of the month electronically, provided the invoice for the month of service is received by the first day of the following month and receipt of monthly reports for the month of service is received no later than the first Friday of the following month.
- 2.2. In accordance with A.R.S. §11-251.08 and A.R.S. §11-594(E); fees established by the Board of Supervisors will be charged when fulfilling contractual and statutory obligations as Mohave County's Medical Examiner. No other fees shall be charged. The following fees were adopted by the Board of Supervisors:
  - 2.2.1. \$35.00 Cremation Authorization;
  - 2.2.2. \$10.00 Autopsy Report Extended Family;
  - 2.2.3. \$25.00 Autopsy Report Media & Attorneys;
  - 2.2.4. \$25.00 Autopsy Report in CD format.
- 2.3. Immediate Family to the deceased will receive an Autopsy Report at no cost.
- 2.4. Medical Examiner shall collect all fees established under the terms of this Contract and will account for them by category in the required monthly report submitted to the County.
- 2.5. The direct Payment and Fees Collected shall be considered by the Medical Examiner, to be full and final compensation for all Work contemplated by this Request for Proposal.

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 4 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787 Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

#### **SCOPE OF SERVICES**

#### 3. SCOPE OF WORK:

The Medical Examiner shall:

- 3.1. Comply with and perform all the duties of the Medical Examiner prescribed in Arizona Law.
- 3.2. Provide services throughout the boundaries of Mohave County, including the portions of Native American reservations that are within Mohave County, consistent with federal and state law, and communicate with tribal authorities as appropriate.
- 3.3. Perform the duties prescribed in A.R.S. §11-594 described as follows:
  - 3.3.1. Be responsible for medical examination or autopsy of a human body when death occurred under any of the circumstances set forth in A.R.S. §11-593.
  - 3.3.2. Take charge of the dead body of which the Medical Examiner is notified and, after making inquiries regarding the cause and manner of death, examine the body.
  - 3.3.3. Certify the cause and manner of death following a medical examination or an autopsy, or both. Make inquiries regarding the cause and manner of death, reduce the findings to writing and promptly make a full report on forms prescribed for that purpose.
  - 3.3.4. Generate an electronic death certificate provided by the Bureau of Public Health Statistics Office of Vital Records indicating the cause as well as the manner of death for those bodies on which a medical examination or autopsy is performed.
  - 3.3.5. Notify the Mohave County Attorney, or other law enforcement authority, when death is found to be from other than natural causes.
  - 3.3.6. Notify the appropriate city, town, county, or state law enforcement agency if further investigation by such agency appears to be necessary.
  - 3.3.7. Perform the duties specified under A.R.S. § 28-668, regarding accidents involving death to drivers, and testing alcohol concentration. In the event the police agency requests blood to run the toxicology; blood will be drawn by the Medical Examiner and submitted to the requesting agency.
  - 3.3.8. Perform the duties specified under Title 36, Chapter 7, Article 3.
- 3.4. Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-594(D) if a dispute arises over the findings of a Medical Examiner's report, the Medical Examiner shall, upon an order of the Arizona Superior Court, make available all evidence and documentation to a court-designated licensed forensic pathologist for examination, and the results of the examination shall be reported to the Arizona Superior Court in the county issuing the order.
- 3.5. Perform the duties prescribed in A.R.S. § 11-597 described as follows:

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PAGE 5 OF 36
PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS

T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

3.5.1. The Medical Examiner shall conduct such investigation as may be required and shall determine whether or not the public interest requires an autopsy or other special investigation. In the determination of the need for an autopsy, the Medical Examiner or person performing the duties of the Medical Examiner may consider the request for an autopsy made by private persons or public officials. If the County Attorney or the Superior Court Judge of the county where the death occurred requests an autopsy be performed by the Medical Examiner or the licensed physician performing the duties of the Medical Examiner, then an autopsy shall be performed.

- 3.5.2. The Medical Examiner or alternate Medical Examiner as stated in A.R.S. §11-594 shall personally attend and direct all autopsies that are or could reasonably end up in a criminal case.
- 3.5.3. The Medical Examiner shall perform an autopsy in cases of sudden and unexplained infant death in accordance with protocols adopted by the Director of the Department of Health Services. If the Medical Examiner determines that the infant died of sudden infant death syndrome, the Medical Examiner shall notify the Department of Health Services. The Medical Examiner may take tissue samples for research purposes from an infant who died of sudden infant death syndrome if the tissue removal is not likely to result in any visible disfigurement, except that tissue samples for research purposes shall not be taken if a parent of the infant objects on the grounds such procedure conflicts with personal beliefs.
- 3.5.4. If an autopsy is performed, a full record or report of the facts developed by the autopsy in the findings of the person making such autopsy shall be properly made and filed in the Medical Examiner's office or with the County Board of Supervisors. If the person performing the autopsy determines that the report should be forwarded to the county where the death occurred or the county wherein any injury contributing to or causing the death was sustained, he shall forward a copy of the report to the County Attorney.
- 3.5.5. The County Attorney may request and upon request shall receive from the Medical Examiner or a person performing the duties of the Medical Examiner a copy of the report on any autopsy performed.
- 3.6. In accordance with A.R.S. §11-599, the Medical Examiner shall examine and certify all death certificates prior to cremation of a body.
- 3.7. In accordance with A.R.S. § 36-831(E) the Medical Examiner shall notify the native American tribe and give the tribe the opportunity to provide for the person's burial or other funeral and disposition arrangements for decedent's of known native American tribal membership.
- 3.8. The Medical Examiner shall:
  - 3.8.1. Cooperate with law enforcement agencies, County and City Prosecutors, tribal law enforcement, and Public Defenders to the extent necessary to comply with the law, and to facilitate the prosecution and defense of criminal cases.
  - 3.8.2. Provide expert testimony in all areas of forensic pathology. Testify at judicial proceedings as both an expert and rebuttal witness providing medicolegal consultation to support analysis of investigative data, criminal investigations, and DNA testing. These services shall continue after termination of the awarded Contract as AFTER CONTRACT SERVICES.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 6 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

3.8.3. Arrange for toxicology; histology, forensic testing, and other laboratory work as required or requested by governmental agencies. The Medical Examiner shall provide the County Attorney's Office and the Public Defender's Office with the names, addresses, and phone numbers of all persons and companies conducting the testing and lab work under this subsection along with the name of the contact person to arrange interviews and court appearances for the person(s) to arrange interviews and court appearances for the person(s) doing the actual testing. Any such persons or companies conducting such work for the Medical Examiner must agree that they will cooperate and attend all required court appearances without the necessity for a subpoena whether they reside in Arizona or out of state.

- 3.8.4. Remove any valuables from the deceased, document on a property release form and with digital images all items including all currency. These items are then released to the mortuary of record with verification and signature by the mortuary representative making the removal. A copy of the property release form becomes a permanent part of the decedent's chart. In the event there is an excess of \$500.00 the legal next of kin is notified prior to releasing the funds. If the dollar amount is felt to be unsafe to retain in Medical Examiner's office as cash, the cash will be deposited and a check will be issued by the Medical Examiner's Office for the exact amount of the funds.
- 3.8.5. Participate in the Arizona Child Fatality Review Team organized pursuant to A.R.S. §36.3502.
- 3.8.6. Participate in the Domestic Violence Fatality Review Board.
- 3.9. The Medical Examiner shall cooperate with the Mohave County Department of Public Health Director. Cooperation with the Mohave County Department of Public Health shall include:
  - 3.9.1. Be available for public health emergencies as part of the Mohave County Department of Public Health Emergency Response Team (MCDPH) as well as participate in emergency training as requested through the Mohave County Public Health Department.
  - 3.9.2. Reviewing MCDPH policies and procedures as requested and provide suggestions for changes.
  - 3.9.3. Provide technical assistance as requested to community providers.
  - 3.9.4. Provide education and training sessions as requested to employees and the public.
  - 3.9.5. Participate as a subject matter expert as necessary on medical issues as requested.
- 3.10. The Medical Examiner shall perform other duties and responsibilities of the Medical Examiner as required by applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations and the standards of their profession.
- 3.11. The Medical Examiner may, subject to the approval of the County Board of Supervisors:
  - 3.11.1. Appoint qualified professional, technical, and clerical personnel as necessary for the administration of the office.
  - 3.11.2. Authorize qualified practicing physicians in local areas to perform medical examinations required of the Medical Examiner in accordance with A.R.S. § 11-594(B).

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 7 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

3.11.3. Such appointments and authorizations shall be at no additional cost to the County. The cost of such personnel shall be the sole responsibility of the Medical Examiner.

- 3.12. Services to be performed under this contract involve situations or problems which vary from case to case and may be unusual and take time to define. They can be addressed by referring to known procedures or standards of the profession.
- 3.13. The Medical Examiner shall have the training, experience, knowledge and the judgment to consider which among diverse procedures should be followed in the performance of the duties under this contract, and in what sequence to obtain the evidence necessary to assist in the determination of the manner and cause of death.
  - 3.13.1. Medical Examiner shall have the training, knowledge and experience to perform all duties required by the Arizona Revised Statutes in the performance of their duties under this contract and that the County has specifically relied on said representations.
  - 3.13.2. Medical Examiner shall be responsible for any and all transcription and other services necessary to perform the duties under this contract.
  - 3.13.3. Medical Examiner shall be responsible for arranging for facilities needed to perform all services under this Contract including, but not limited to examination and autopsy services.
    - 3.13.3.1. Mohave County does not provide any facilities, equipment, personnel or other resources. Medical Examiner shall have the ability to coordinate and arrange for all resources to perform the duties and scope of services required of the Medical Examiner.
    - 3.13.3.2. The facility shall restrict access to the bodies in the custody of the Medical Examiner so that the bodies are protected from tampering and/or contamination. Mortuary personnel shall have access to the facility for placement and removal of Medical Examiner cases under the supervision and procedures directed by the Medical Examiner.
  - 3.13.4. The facility selected shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws, rules and regulations regarding the storing of deceased bodies and performing medical examinations. The Medical Examiner shall comply with all environmental laws (including formaldehyde training if applicable), rules, regulations and/or standards (local, state, and federal) in every aspect of the performance of the duties under this Contract.
  - 3.13.5. County may, at reasonable times, and at the County's expense, inspect the place of a Medical Examiner or subcontractor(s) which are related to the performance of any contract as awarded or to be awarded.
- 3.14. The Medical Examiner shall perform all duties necessary and appropriate to carry out the duties under this Contract. The Medical Examiner shall retain sole and absolute discretion in determining the manner and means in carrying out the responsibilities hereunder.
- 3.15. The Medical Examiner will not be provided any training by the County to provide services under this Contract.
- 3.16. The Medical Examiner shall provide qualified personnel on a twenty-four (24) hour, seven (7) days per week basis throughout the County.

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 8 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

3.17. In accordance with A.R.S. §11-251.17(A), the Board of Supervisors approve use of the adopted County Seal when carrying out the official duties as Mohave County Medical Examiner.

#### 4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTED MEDICAL EXAMINER:

- 4.1. This contract does not create an employee/employer relationship between the parties. It is understood and agreed that the Medical Examiner at all times shall be deemed an independent contracted Medical Examiner of Mohave County and not an employee of the County for all purposes, including but not limited to the application of the Americans with Disabilities Act, Fair Labor Standards Act, minimum wage and overtime payments, Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, any applicable revenue and taxation laws, the Arizona Workers Compensation Law, and the Arizona unemployment insurance law. Any employees of Medical Examiner, or other personnel appointed by Medical Examiner pursuant to A.R.S. §11-594B, shall in no event be deemed to be employees of Mohave County. The Medical Examiner agrees to advise any resources and/or personnel, including but not limited to: all employees or subcontracted individuals performing medical pathology services on behalf of the Medical Examiner that they are not employees of the County for any purposes, including, but not limited to, Workers' Compensation.
  - 4.1.1. It is clearly understood that each party shall act in its individual capacity and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venture, or associate of the other. An employee or agent of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be the employee or agent of the other party for any purpose whatsoever.
  - 4.1.2. Medical Examiner shall not be entitled to compensation in the form of salaries, or to paid vacation or sick days by the County, and that such days do not accumulate for the use of same at a later date.
  - 4.1.3. Mohave County will not provide any insurance coverage to the Medical Examiner, including Workmen's Compensation coverage. The Medical Examiner is advised that taxes or social security payments shall not be withheld from a County payment issued hereunder and that Medical Examiner should make arrangements to directly pay such expenses, if any.
- 4.2. Subject to the parameters of this Contract, including the requirements of all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, the Medical Examiner will retain sole and absolute discretion in the judgment of the manner and means of carrying out the Medical Examiner's activities and responsibilities hereunder. Medical Examiner agrees it is a separate and independent enterprise from the County. The Medical Examiner has full opportunity to find additional business having made its own investment in its business and will utilize a high level of skill necessary to perform the work, including all services required to be performed as the Medical Examiner hereunder. No agency relationship, except as expressly provided herein, shall exist between the contract parties or between employees or agents of the parties, as a result of the execution of the Contract.
- 4.3. The Mohave County Medical Examiner is fully and completely independent from Mohave County and may provide forensic pathologist services to outside jurisdictions and to private parties. Any outside work performed by the Medical Examiner shall be completely separate from the work performed for Mohave County. The Medical Examiner shall not contemplate any work which may be or become a conflict of interest, or cause a conflict or be in competition with work being performed for Mohave County. The Medical Examiner shall not represent or imply any outside work is being performed as the "Mohave County Medical Examiner" either through advertisement,

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 9 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

statements, logos, seals, verbally or otherwise. Further, the Medical examiner shall not use any materials, supplies, facilities, transportations or other resources in the course of outside work which has been either fully or partially supplied by or obtained from Mohave County to include resources obtained through Mohave County Sponsored Grants.

4.4. Medical Examiner shall maintain in current status all Federal, State, and local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the Medical Examiner as applicable to this contract.

#### **5. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS:**

- 5.1. The Medical Examiner understands that all medical examiner related records are retained within the County or with the Medical Examiner and in accordance with all State and Federal Laws, Rules, and Regulations.
- 5.2. Medical Examiner shall preserve and make available all medical examiner related records for a period of three (3) years from the date of final payment under this contract or until resolution of an audit by the County, whichever shall first occur, and for such a period as is required by any other paragraph of this Contract including the following:
- 5.3. Internal control over all financial transactions related to this contract shall be in accordance with sound fiscal policies. The County may, at reasonable times and places, audit the books and records of you or any and all of your subcontracted Medical Examiners. Said audit shall be limited to this contract and its scope of services.
- 5.4. If this Contract is completely or partially performed, or terminated the records relating to the work performed under this Contract shall be delivered to the County within five (5) working days after performance, completion or termination of this Contract.
- 5.5. Records which relate to disputes, litigation or settlement of claims arising out of the performance of his/her Contract shall be retained by Medical Examiner until such appeals, litigation, claims, or exceptions have been resolved.

#### 6. REPORTS:

- 6.1. Medical Examiner shall maintain complete and accurate records of services provided; and collect and analyze pertinent statistics on a monthly basis. Monthly reports detailing the overall operation of the Medical Examiner's office shall be submitted by the first Friday of the following month, to the County's Contract Representative (CCR). Such reports shall include statistics for the following services:
  - 6.1.1. Autopsies;
  - 6.1.2. Examinations;
  - 6.1.3. Investigations;
  - 6.1.4. Death certificates:
  - 6.1.5. Court appearances;

#### **REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** PAGE 10 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787 Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

- 6.1.6. Special occurrences requiring the attention of the Medical Examiner;
- 6.1.7. Other matters that would be of interest to the County;
- 6.1.8. Cremation Authorizations.
- 6.1.9. (Note: 4.1.6. & 4.1.7. may be added as comments on the monthly reports).
- 6.2. Quarterly reports detailing the overall operation of the Medical Examiner's office shall be submitted each quarter with the monthly report to the County's Contract Representative (CCR). Such reports shall include a Quarterly Income and Expense Statement.

#### 7. TRANSPORT OF DECEDENTS:

- 7.1. Pertaining to A.R.S. §11-594 Taking charge of the dead body: The County designates the Medical Examiner as the agent for Mohave County to provide transportation of decedents to the Mohave County Medical Examiner's Morgue, or other location as directed by the Medical Examiner or their designee for autopsy services.
- 7.2. Transportation Medical Examiner's Cases: Cases directed for transport to the Medical Examiner's Office or other location for medical examination will be assigned the sequential number issued by the Medical Examiner.
- 7.3. **General Compliance:** Medical Examiner shall provide and perform professional transportation services for the County that the Medical Examiner is licensed to provide and perform in a manner consistent with Arizona Law and consistent with industry standards, usages and customary practices within the State of Arizona, the Arizona State Health Department, OSHA, the Arizona Corporation Commission, any other applicable governing authority.
- 7.4. Services include: Picking up, placing the decedent, at a minimum, in a light weight body bag and transporting the decedent to the location directed by the Medical Examiner or the area law enforcement agency with jurisdiction over the case. For those cases requiring forensic medical services, upon completion of the exam by the Medical Examiner, the decedent will be transported to the mortuary of preference by the mortuary as pre-selected by the decedent prior to their death or by the family's written directive and release. If no preference has been expressed the decedent shall be transported to a County contracted "On Call" mortuary provided there is no inconsistency with the rights of the family under the provisions of A.R.S. § 36-831(A) & (B).
- 7.5. **Equipment/Facilities:** The Medical Examiner shall have the equipment, facilities and personnel to ensure the adequate delivery of the services required and at a minimum will provide the following:
  - 7.5.1. Vehicles, Equipment and Personnel for Transportation Services: Vehicles, equipment and personnel to provide transportation for up to two decedents simultaneously in safe operating condition, mechanically sound and capable of responding within the legal boundaries of Mohave County. Medical Examiner's equipment to include: Gurneys, collapsible stretchers/cots and plastic body bags of multiple gauges to ensure proper and safe removal of human remains.
  - 7.5.2. Safety Requirements: Services in accordance with the safety requirements and guidelines customary to the profession, utilizing protective clothing, gloves, masks, lifting and removal procedures.

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PAGE 11 OF 36 PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

7.5.3. Appropriate Presentation in the Administration of Services: Vehicles and equipment maintained in a clean and presentable condition, exhibiting no major dents or damage to provide transportation to the designation directed in a MEDICAL EXAMINER'S vehicle that is suitable and appropriate. Personnel whose appearance presents as clean, neat and properly attired for the type of removal requested.

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

PAGE 12 OF 36

#### **INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS**

#### 1. PRE-PROPOSAL TELECONFERENCE:

The date and time of a prospective pre-proposal teleconference is indicated on the cover page of this document. The purpose of this teleconference will be to clarify the contents of this Request for Proposals in order to prevent any misunderstanding of the County's position. Any doubt as to the requirements of this Request for Proposals or any apparent omission or discrepancy should be presented to the County at this teleconference. The County will then determine the appropriate action necessary, if any, and issue a written amendment to the Request for Proposals. Oral statements or instructions will not constitute an amendment to this Request for Proposals. "Persons with a disability or that are unable to physically attend may request a reasonable accommodation by contacting the responsible Procurement Officer at (928) 753-0752. Requests for accommodations must be made forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the event."

#### 2. PROPOSAL FORMAT:

One paper original, three paper copies, and one electronic copy (5 total) of each proposal should be submitted on the forms and in the format specified in the RFP. The original copy of the proposal should be clearly labeled "Original" and shall be unbound and single-sided. The material should be in sequence and related to the RFP. The sections of the submittal should be tabbed, clearly identifiable and shall include a minimum of the following sections: Price, Offer and Acceptance, Original RFP, Evaluation Criteria. The County will not provide any reimbursement for the cost of developing or presenting proposals in response to this RFP. Failure to include the requested information may have a negative impact on the evaluation of the offeror's proposal.

#### 3. PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL:

- 3.1. All proposals shall be on the forms provided in this Request for Proposal package. It is permissible to copy these forms as required. Facsimiles, telegraphic proposals, or mailgrams shall not be considered.
- 3.2. The Offer and Acceptance page shall be submitted with an original ink signature by the person authorized to sign the proposal.
- 3.3. Erasures, interlineations, or other modifications in the proposal shall be initialed in original ink by the authorized person signing the vendor offer.
- 3.4. In case of error in the extension of prices in the proposal, unit price shall govern when applicable.
- 3.5. Periods of time, stated as a number of days, shall be in calendar days.
- 3.6. It is the responsibility of all offerors to examine the entire Request for Proposal package and seek clarification of any requirement that may not be clear and to check all responses for accuracy before submitting a proposal. Negligence in preparing a proposal confers no right of withdrawal after due time and date.

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PAGE **13** OF **36** 

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

#### 4. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

For purposes of determining any possible conflict of interest, all Offerors <u>must disclose</u> if any current Mohave County employee is also an owner, corporate officer, or employee of your business. Offerors are to indicate on the Offer Page of this solicitation either "Yes" (County employee is associated with your business), or "No." If "Yes", Offerors must provide the name(s) of the County employee(s) and the position(s) County employee(s) hold within your business where indicated.

#### 5. WHERE TO SUBMIT PROPOSALS:

In order to be considered, the offeror must complete and submit their proposal to the Procurement Office at the location indicated, or prior to the exact time and date indicated on the Notice of Request for Proposal page. The offeror's proposal shall be presented in a sealed envelope. The words "SEALED PROPOSAL" with SERVICE DESCRIPTION, CONTRACT NUMBER, DATE AND TIME OF PROPOSAL OPENING shall be written on the envelope.

#### 6. OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE PERIOD:

In order to allow for an adequate evaluation, the County requires an offer in response to this solicitation to be valid and irrevocable for ninety (90) days after the opening time and date.

#### 7. INQUIRIES:

Any question related to a Request for Proposal shall be directed to the Procurement Officer whose name appears on the front side of this document. The offeror shall not contact or ask questions of the department for whom the requirement is being procured. Questions should be submitted in writing when time permits. The Procurement Officer may require any and all questions to be submitted in writing at the Procurement Officer's sole discretion. Any correspondence related to a solicitation should refer to the appropriate Request for Proposal number, page and paragraph number. However, the offeror must not place the number on the outside of an envelope containing questions since such an envelope may be identified as a sealed proposal and may not be opened until after the official proposal due time and date. Oral interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Only questions answered by formal written Amendment will be binding.

#### 8. REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

The County reserves the right to request additional information from Offerors for the purpose of explaining the contents of their proposal. Any such request shall be for informational purposes only and does not constitute discussions.

#### 9. CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS:

The County reserves the right to enter into negotiations with the Offeror(s) determined to be reasonably susceptible of being selected for award, or to enter into exclusive negotiations with the Offeror whose proposal is deemed most advantageous, whichever is in the County's best interest, for the purpose of negotiation. In the event that exclusive negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the County reserves the right to enter into negotiations with the next highest ranked Offeror without the need to repeat the formal solicitation process.

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

PAGE 14 OF 36

#### 10. AWARD OF CONTRACT:

- 10.1. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Request for Proposal, the County reserves the right to:
  - 10.1.1. Waive any immaterial defect or informality; or
  - 10.1.2. Reject any or all proposals, or portions thereof; or
  - 10.1.3. Reissue the Request for Proposal.
- 10.2. A response to any RFP is an offer to contract with the County based upon the terms, conditions, and specifications contained in the County's RFP. Proposals do not become contracts unless and until they are executed by the County's Procurement Director or the Mohave County Board of Supervisors. A contract has its inception in the award, eliminating a formal signing of a separate contract. For that reason, all of the terms and conditions of the Contract are contained in the RFP, unless any of the terms and conditions are modified by an Amendment, or by mutually agreed terms and conditions in the Contract.

#### 11. FAMILIARIZATION OF SCOPE OF WORK:

Before submitting a proposal, each Offeror shall familiarize itself with the Scope of Work, laws, regulations, and other factors affecting performance of work. It shall carefully review the requirements of the RFP and otherwise satisfy itself as to the expense and ability to satisfy the requirements as listed in the RFP. The submission of a Proposal will constitute a representation of compliance by the Offeror. There will be no subsequent financial adjustment, other than that provided by the Contract.

#### 12. LATE PROPOSALS:

Late proposals will not be considered. Kingman is considered a "rural" area by many express delivery carriers and thus, they do not guarantee priority delivery (next day). Offerors are encouraged to keep this in mind when arranging delivery of their proposals and are advised herein that late proposals will be rejected and returned to the Offeror regardless of reason for being late.

#### 13. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL:

At any time prior to the solicitation due date and time an offeror (or designated representative) may withdraw their Offer. Facsimile or telephone withdrawals shall not be considered.

#### 14. AMENDMENT OF THE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS:

The Offeror shall acknowledge receipt of a Request for Proposal amendment by signing and returning the document by the specified due time and date.

#### 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION:

If a person believes that any portion of a proposal, bid, offer, specification, protest, or correspondence contains information that should be withheld, then the Procurement Director should be so advised in writing (price is not confidential and will not be withheld). The County shall review all requests for confidentiality and provide a written determination. If the confidential request is denied, such information shall be disclosed as public information, unless the person utilizes the "Protest" provision.

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PAGE **15** OF **36** MORGAN MICHAELS

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

#### 16. SUBCONTRACTORS:

Offeror must list any subcontractor/s that will be utilized in the performance of services herein. For each subcontractor, detail on respective qualifications must be included.

#### 17. UPON NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD:

The apparent successful offeror shall sign and file with the County, within ten (10) days after Notice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to the successful execution of the Contract.

#### 18. EXCEPTIONS TO CONTRACT PROVISIONS:

A response to any RFP is an offer to contract with the County based upon the contract provisions contained in the County's RFP, including but not limited to, the specifications, scope of work and any terms and conditions. Offerors who wish to propose modifications to the contract provisions must clearly identify the proposed exception/s and any proposed substitute language and clearly describe how the County will be better served by the substitute language. However, the provisions of the RFP cannot be modified without the express written approval of the Procurement Director or his designee. If a proposal or offer is returned with modifications to the contract provisions that are not expressly approved in writing by the Procurement Director or his designee, the contract provisions contained in the County's RFP will prevail.

#### 19. PROPOSAL RESULTS:

Proposal results are not provided in response to telephone inquiries. A tabulation of proposals received is on file in the Procurement Department and available for review after official contract award.

#### **20. VENDOR APPLICATION:**

Prior to the award of a contract, the successful Offeror shall have a completed vendor application on file with the Department of Procurement. The Vendor Application may be downloaded off of the Procurement Department website at: <a href="mailto:procurementregistration.mohavecounty.us">procurementregistration.mohavecounty.us</a> Internet Access is available for use at all County public libraries.

#### 21. AWARD PROCESS:

21.1. Each Offeror will be notified in writing of the award determination. Formal notification of award and the execution of a contract are subject to approval by the Mohave County Board of Supervisors.

#### 22. EVALUATION SCORING CRITERIA:

- 22.1. Evaluation of each offer received under this RFP that is determined to be responsive to the proposal requirements, shall be based upon the following scoring criteria listed in their relative order of importance:
  - 22.1.1. Qualifications and Experience 40 Points
  - 22.1.2. Method of Approach 35 Points
  - 22.1.3. Cost 25 Points

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 16 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787 Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

#### 22.1.4. Total Points Available - 100 Points

- 22.2. The proposal review and evaluation process will be conducted utilizing a fair and objective process that adheres to Mohave County's Procurement Policy and all other applicable state and federal regulations.
- 22.3. The Evaluation Committee may select a proposal based on the initial information received without modification; however, the committee reserves the right to request additional data, conduct oral interviews and negotiations, and/or conduct a management review of the evaluation process prior to making a recommendation of an award to the Mohave County Board of Supervisors.
- 22.4. Offerors will also be evaluated on their demonstrated ability to provide services for the targeted population as described in this RFP.
- 22.5. Offers may be rejected if it is determined to be in the best interest of the County.

#### 23. REQUIRED CONTENT AND ORGANIZATION:

- 23.1. The Offer shall clearly demonstrate the Offeror's ability to provide the services as described in the Scope of Work. A responsive offer must comply with the format and content requirements of the RFP.
- 23.2. Required submission documents should be included as an attachment and organized as follows:

Proposal Content: Title Page	Completed Form 1 – Title Page
Table of Contents	Required with page numbers included.
Qualifications and Experience	Include information relevant to Qualifications and Experience (See Below.) Label each section and applicable subsection with the section number and title.
Method of Approach	Include information relevant to Method of Approach (See Below.) Label each section and applicable subsection with the section number and title.
References	Completed Form 2 – References
Cost	Completed Form 3 –Price Proposal

#### 23.3. Proposal Format Requirements:

Font	12 Point – Times New Roman or Arial	
Pages	Single-Sided	
Margins	One (1) Inch – This applies to ALL margins.	
Spacing	Double-Spaced	

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 17 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

The name of the organization submitting the proposal and the page number on each page.

- 23.4. Qualifications and Experience Offers should include the following information:
  - 23.4.1. Provide a listing of key individuals and describe their degrees, experience, certifications, licenses and other qualifications relevant in providing medical examiner and related services.
  - 23.4.2. Describe the experience and past performance of the firm in performing medical examiner and related services.
  - 23.4.3. Offerors that do not have the qualifications required as documented in Section 3.08 of the RFP must clearly state this limitation in their proposal.
  - 23.4.4. Complete Form 2 providing references that may be contacted.
- 23.5. **Method of Approach:** Responses must address the following:
  - 23.5.1. Offeror's planned approach to successfully meet the requirements listed in the Scope of Work.
  - 23.5.2. Describe the tools, resources, and methodologies that will be utilized to successfully provide the services described in the Scope of Work.
  - 23.5.3. Describe how Offeror's planned approach best addresses the needs of Mohave County.
  - 23.5.4. Provide a proposed timeline for providing medical examiner services to the County.
- 23.6. **Cost:** Responses must include the following:
  - 24.6.1 Completed Form 3 Price Proposal, indicating the annual cost for services described in the Scope of Work.

#### **REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03**

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

PAGE 18 OF 36

#### **SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS**

#### 1. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.

The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Contract. The County in no way warrants that the minimum limits contained herein are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors and Contractor is free to purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary.

1.1. **MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:** Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability not less than those stated below.

#### 1.1.1. Commercial General Liability - Occurrence Form

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage.

General Aggregate	\$2,000,000
<ul> <li>Products – Completed Operations Aggregate</li> </ul>	\$2,000,000
Each Occurrence	\$1,000,000

- a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "Mohave County and its officers, officials, agents, volunteers, and employees shall be named as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the work, services, or activities performed by or on behalf of the Contractor." Such additional insured shall be covered to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor, even if those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract.
- b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement in favor of Mohave County, and its officers, officials, agents, volunteers, and employees for losses arising from work performed by or on behalf of the Contractor.

#### 1.1.2. Automobile Liability

Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used in the performance of this Contract.

• Combined Single Limit (CSL)

\$1,000,000

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "Mohave County and its officers, officials, agents, volunteers, and employees shall be named as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the work, services, or activities performed by or on behalf of the Contractor." Such additional insured shall be covered to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor, even if those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract.

#### **REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03**

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

PAGE **19** OF **36** 

- b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement in favor of Mohave County, and its officers, officials, agents, volunteers, and employees for losses arising from work performed by or on behalf of the Contractor.
- c. Policy shall contain a severability of interest provision.

#### 1.1.3. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability

•	Workers' Compensation	Statutory
•	Employers' Liability	
	<ul> <li>Each Accident</li> </ul>	\$1,000,000
	<ul> <li>Disease – Each Employee</li> </ul>	\$1,000,000
	<ul> <li>Disease – Policy Limit</li> </ul>	\$1,000,000

- a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement in favor of Mohave County, and its officers, officials, agents, volunteers, and employees for losses arising from work performed by or on behalf of the Contractor.
- b. This requirement shall not apply to: Separately, EACH contractor or subcontractor exempt under A.R.S. 23-901, AND when such contractor or subcontractor executes the appropriate waiver (Sole Proprietor/Independent Contractor) form.

#### 1.1.4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability)

Each Claim \$1,000,000Annual Aggregate \$2,000,000

- a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Contract is written on a claims-made basis, Contractor warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede the effective date of this Contract and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time work under this Contract is Completed.
- b. The policy shall cover professional misconduct or negligent acts for those positions defined in the Scope of Work of this contract.
- 1.2. <u>ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:</u> The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the following provisions:
  - 1.2.1. On insurance policies where the County of Mohave is named as an additional insured, the County of Mohave shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract.
  - 1.2.2. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to all other available sources.
  - 1.2.3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Contract.

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PAGE **20** OF **36** 

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

#### 1.3. **NOTICE OF CANCELLATION:**

Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the County. Such notice shall be sent directly to (County of Mohave Department Representative's Name & Address) and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested.

#### 1.4. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:

Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an "A.M. Best" rating of not less than B+ VI. The County in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential insurer insolvency.

#### 1.5. **VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:**

Contractor shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance (ACORD form or equivalent approved by the County) as required by this Contract. The certificates for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.

All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work commences. Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or prior to commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project. Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a material breach of contract.

All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to (County Department Representative's Name and Address). The County project/contract number and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance. The County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract at any time.

#### 1.6. **SUBCONTRACTORS**:

Contractors' certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insureds under its policies **or** Contractor shall furnish to the County separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified above.

#### 1.7. APPROVAL:

Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Contract shall be made by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final. Such action will not require a formal Contract amendment, but may be made by administrative action.

Mohave County Risk Management approved 04/07/2021 BS

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PAGE 21 OF 36 PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

#### 2. SOLICITATION AMENDMENTS:

Amendments County's Procurement mav be obtained from the website at: http://procurementbids.mohavecounty.us. It is the Offeror's responsibility to obtain a copy of any amendment relevant to this solicitation. Internet access is available at all public libraries. Any interested offerors without internet access may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling (928) 753-0752, or a copy may be picked up during regular business hours at the Department of Procurement, 700 W. Beale Street, First Floor East, Kingman, Arizona 86402-7000. The County of Mohave takes no responsibility for informing recipients of changes to the original solicitation document. Failure to submit signed amendments with the proposal response may be grounds for deeming the proposal response non-responsive.

#### 3. CONTRACT TYPE, TERM AND RENEWAL:

Contract Term and Renewal: The term of the contract shall commence upon award or the date negotiated based upon the transition plan, as negotiated after award, and shall remain in effect for a period of five (5) years thereafter, unless terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein. The Contractor agrees that the County shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the contract for five (5) additional one (1) year renewal periods or portions thereof upon expiration of the initial contract term. In the event that the County exercises such rights, all terms, conditions and provisions of the original contract shall remain the same and apply during the renewal period with the possible exception of rate adjustments and minor scope additions and/or deletions which may be agreed upon.

#### 4. RATE ADJUSTMENTS:

- 4.1. The County will review fully documented\_requests for rate adjustments after services have been successfully provided for a two (2) year period. Rate adjustments will only be considered at the time of contract renewal and will be a factor in the renewal review process. Contractor shall furnish written price adjustment figures, keyed to industry and changes, at least ninety (90) days prior to the contract expiration date to substantiate any claim for increase. County will determine whether the requested rate adjustment or an alternate option, is in the best interest of the County. Any rate adjustment will become effective upon approval by the County's Board of Supervisors on the effective date of the contract renewal and shall remain in effect during the renewal period. If the parties to the contract cannot agree on renewal terms, it is hereby understood that the County may re-bid the Contract.
  - 4.1.1. The Contractor shall supply with all rate adjustment requests the Consumer Price Index (CPI) from the Bureau of Labor Statistics, specifically for the Western Region, Phoenix-Mesa, Arizona for the most recent 12-month data series available at: <a href="http://www.bls.gov/cpi/">http://www.bls.gov/cpi/</a>. Should the specified CPI Index as well as significant industry changes occur wherein price adjustments support a rate decrease, as supported and substantiated by County's documentation, County reserves the right to request and negotiate a decreased rate.

#### **5. CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS:**

The Contractor shall establish and maintain procedures and controls that are acceptable to the County for the purpose of assuring that no information contained in its records or obtained from the County or from others in carrying out its functions under the contract shall be used or disclosed by it, its agents, officers, or employees, except as required to efficiently perform duties under the contract. Persons

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PAGE **22** OF **36** 

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

requesting such information should be referred to the County. Contractor also agrees that any information pertaining to individual persons shall not be divulged other than to employees or officers of the Contractor as needed for the performance of duties under the contract, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the County.

#### **6. KEY PERSONNEL:**

It is essential that Contractor provide adequate experienced personnel, capable of and devoted to the successful accomplishment of work to be performed under this contract. Contractor must agree to assign specific individuals to the key positions. Contractor agrees that, once assigned to work under this contract, key personnel shall not be removed or replaced without ten (10) days prior written notice to the County. If key personnel are not available for work under this contract for a continuous period exceeding thirty (30) calendar days, or are expected to devote substantially less effort to the work than initially anticipated, Contractor shall immediately notify the County, and shall, subject to the concurrence of the County, replace such personnel with personnel of substantially equal ability and qualifications.

#### 7. EXCEPTIONS TO CONTRACT PROVISIONS:

A response to this RFP is an offer to contract with the County based upon the contract provisions contained in the County's RFP, including but not limited to, the specifications, scope of services and any terms and conditions. Offerors who wish to propose modifications to the contract provisions must clearly identify the proposed deviations and any proposed substitute language. However, the provisions of the RFP cannot be modified without the express written approval of the Procurement Director or his/her designee. If a proposal or offer is returned with modifications to the contract provisions that are not expressly approved in writing by the Procurement Director or his/her designee, the contract provisions contained in the RFP shall prevail.

#### 8. CERTIFICATES AND LICENSES:

The successful offeror shall possess all necessary and valid licenses and certificates required for performance of the work specified herein. Current copies of all applicable licenses and certificates shall be provided to the County within twenty-four (24) hours upon demand at any time prior to and during the contract term.

#### 9. QUALITY OF WORK:

Contractor shall be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of the services provided under this contract. Contractor shall perform the services under this contract in accordance with generally accepted professional and industry standards. All services shall conform to and be in compliance with applicable federal, state and local statutes, rules, codes, laws, ordinances, regulations and restrictions.

#### 10. NEW PRODUCTS OR SERVICES:

Mohave County may, at its sole discretion, allow new products or services, or an expansion of existing services identified by the Contractor or Mohave County to be incorporated. The request may be submitted at any time during the Contract period. The requested products or services must conform to the standards and Scope of Work in this Contract.

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 23 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

11. AFTER CONTRACT SERVICES: The County may have the need to utilize Medical Examiner's services after contract termination, especially for those autopsies and death investigations performed, conducted, or worked upon by the Medical Examiner prior to termination of the Contract. For this reason, Medical Examiner agrees to provide expert services after Contract termination, including but not limited to trial preparation, trial interviews, case review preparation, consultation with prosecutor(s), and expert testimony, for those autopsies and death investigations in which the Medical Examiner participated, performed, conducted, or worked upon, whether in whole or in part, during the term of the Contract. Utilization of the Medical Examiner's services after contract end shall be at the County's sole discretion, but shall only be for those autopsies and death investigations as stated in this paragraph. The parties agree that fees for AFTER CONTRACT SERVICES shall be at the rate of \$350 per hour, and Medical Examiner shall submit an invoice to the County for payment within thirty (30) days of providing the expert services.

In the event(s) the County requests Medical Examiner to provide AFTER CONTRACT SERVICES court testimony, County shall, in its sole discretion, make arrangements and pay the costs for the Medical Examiner to travel if the Medical Examiner's place of business is physically located outside of a 150 mile radius of Kingman. In the event(s) the County requests Medical Examiner to provide AFTER CONTRACT SERVICES court testimony and the Medical Examiner's place of business is physically located within a 150 mile radius of Kingman. Medical Examiner shall be responsible for making the travel arrangements, and County shall only be financially responsible to reimburse Medical Examiner for mileage at the current rate per mile recognized as a deductible expense by the United States Internal Revenue Code for a privately-owned automobile used for business purposes. For purposes of this paragraph only, if Medical Examiner is not operating or conducting medical business, then the Medical Examiner's home residence shall be considered the "place of business". For travel to provide AFTER CONTRACT SERVICES court testimony, Medical Examiner shall be reimbursed at a rate of \$50 per hour for travel time. Upon the day of AFTER CONTRACT SERVICES court testimony, Medical Examiner shall be paid the hourly rate beginning at the time in which the County requests the Medical Examiner to appear for Court, and shall continue to be paid the hourly rate until the Medical Examiner completes the testimony.

Mohave County may, at its sole discretion, allow new products or services, or an expansion of existing services identified by the Contractor or Mohave County to be incorporated. The request may be submitted at any time during the Contract period. The requested products or services must conform to the standards and Scope of Work in this Contract.

#### 12. CONTRACT CLOSE OUT:

At the sole discretion of the County, upon contract termination, Medical Examiner shall continue providing contractual and Medical Examiner statutory services at the regular monthly fee for service, on a month-to-month basis, until a new Medical Examiner is obtained.

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 24 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787 Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

## STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

#### 1. DEFINITION OF KEY WORDS USED IN SOLICITATIONS:

- 1.1. Must, Will: Indicates a mandatory requirement. Failure to meet these mandatory requirements may result in the rejection of an Offer as non-responsive.
- 1.2. Should: Indicates something that is recommended but not mandatory. If the offeror fails to provide recommended information, the County may, at its sole option, ask the offeror to provide the information or evaluate the submittal without the information.
- 1.3. May: Indicates something that is not mandatory but permissible.
- 1.4. For purposes of this solicitation, the following definitions apply:
  - 1.4.1. Contractor, Company or Firm Used interchangeably in referring to the organization offering materials or services to the County.
  - 1.4.2. Contract The legal agreement executed between the County and the Contractor.
  - 1.4.3. County Mohave County, Arizona, 86401.
  - 1.4.4. County Project Manager, County Contract Manager, or County Contract Administrator -The County employee specifically designated by the County Engineer as responsible for monitoring and overseeing the Contractor's performance under this Contract.
  - 1.4.5. Evaluation Committee The committee established to formally evaluate proposals according to the evaluation criteria listed in a Solicitation.
  - 1.4.6. Joint Venture Two or more persons or entities combining their property, money, skills, and knowledge to form a distinct legal entity to carry out a single business enterprise for profit, pursuant to a written agreement.
  - 1.4.7. Offer or Response A general term for a Bid, Proposal, or Submittal in response to an Invitation for Bid, Request for Proposals, or Request for Qualifications, respectively.
  - 1.4.8. Offeror The party making an Offer to Mohave County in response to a Solicitation. This term may refer to a Bidder responding to an Invitation for Bids or Proposer responding to a Request for Proposals.
  - 1.4.9. Procurement Director The contracting authority for the County authorized to sign contracts and amendments thereto on behalf of the County.
  - 1.4.10. Solicitation A general term for an Invitation for Bid, Request for Proposals, or Request for Qualifications issued by the County.
- 2. ACCEPTANCE: The Contractor acknowledges that all material or service delivered under this Contract must conform to the specifications of this Contract. Mere receipt of shipment of the material or service specified and any inspection incidental thereto by the County, will not alter or affect the obligations of the Contractor or the rights of the County under the foregoing warranties. Additional warranty requirements may be set forth in this document. All material and services provided under this Contract are subject to final inspection and acceptance by the County. Nonconforming material per the specifications of this Contract will be held at the Contractor's risk and may be returned to the Contractor. If nonconforming material is returned, the Contractor bears all responsibility for all costs associated with original delivery and return. If a service is deemed nonconforming, the Contractor bears responsibility for all costs associated with providing the service. Noncompliance is subject to STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITION, "TERMINATION OF CONTRACT."

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

PAGE 25 OF 36

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

3. ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION: The Contractor must submit a written proposal to the County's Designated Representative and secure the County's written approval of same prior to the performance by the Contractor of any work for which additional compensation will be requested.

- 3.1. Without the prior written approval of the proposed work and the fee therefor, the County will not consider payment of any sums other than those already set forth under this Contract.
- **4. ADVERTISING**: Contractor must not advertise or publish information concerning this Contract without prior written consent of the County.
- 5. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: The Contractor must comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213, and applicable federal regulations under the Act.
- **6. APPLICABLE LAW**: This Contract is governed by the law of the State of Arizona, and suits pertaining to this Contract must be brought only in Federal or State courts in the State of Arizona.
- 7. ARBITRATION: It is understood and agreed that no provision of this Contract relating to arbitration or requiring arbitration will apply to or be binding upon the County except by the County's express written consent given subsequent to the execution of the Contract. However, if both parties agree, disputes may be resolved through arbitration. The dispute must be resolved as provided for in A.R.S. Sec. 12-1501, et seq. The Contractor must continue to render the services required by this Contract without interruption, notwithstanding the provisions of this section.
- 8. ASSIGNMENT DELEGATION: No right or interest in this Contract is assignable in whole or in part without the written consent of the parties hereto, and no delegation of any duty of the Contractor will be made without prior written permission of the County's Procurement Director. This Contract and all of the terms, conditions and provisions herein, extend to and bind upon the heirs, administrators, executors, successors, and assignees of the parties hereto. The County will not unreasonably withhold approval of assignment and will notify the Contractor of the County's position within fifteen (15) days of receipt of written notice by the Contractor.
- **9. BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMITS**: The Contractor must maintain in current status all Federal, State, and local registrations, licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the Contractor as applicable to this Contract.
- **10. CERTIFICATION**: By providing an authorized signature in the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, the Offeror certifies:
  - 10.1. The submission of the Offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices.
  - 10.2. The Contractor must not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment in violation of Federal Executive Order 11246, or A.R.S. § 41-1461, et seq.
  - 10.3. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer.
  - 10.4. The Contractor submitting the Offer hereby certifies that the individual signing the proposal is an authorized agent for the Offeror and has the authority to bind the Offeror to the Contract.
  - 10.5. The Contractor certifies that, to the best knowledge and belief of the Contractor, the Contractor is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal, state, or local government.
- **11. CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS:** The Contractor must establish and maintain procedures and controls that are acceptable to the County for the purpose of assuring that no information contained in

#### **REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03**

PAGE **26** OF **36** PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

its records or obtained from the County or from others in carrying out its functions under the Contract will be used by or disclosed by it, its agents, officers, or employees, except as required to efficiently perform duties under the Contract. Persons requesting such information should be referred to the County. The Contractor also agrees that any information pertaining to individual persons must not be divulged other than to employees or officers of Contractor as needed for the performance of duties under the Contract, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the County.

- **12. CONTINUITY**: The Contractor must maintain all pertinent files, records, and documents which relate to the delivery of materials or services provided in this Contract. Supporting documents, files, and records must be retained by the Contractor for five (5) years after the termination of this Contract.
- 13. CONTRACT: The Contract will be based upon the Solicitation issued by the County, the Offer submitted by the Contractor in response to the Solicitation, and any negotiations entered into and changes agreed upon by both parties. The Offer must substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications and other requirements set forth within the Solicitation. The County reserves the right to clarify any contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, as determined by the County's Procurement Director, may be deemed non-responsive and the Offer rejected. The Contract will contain the entire agreement between the County and the Contractor relating to this requirement and prevails over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master agreements in any form.
- 14. CONTRACT AMENDMENTS: This Contract may be modified only by a written contract amendment approved and signed by the County Board of Supervisors or by the Procurement Director per the Mohave County Procurement Code or any other relevant resolution approved by the Board of Supervisors.
- **15. COST OF PROPOSAL PREPARATION**: The County will not reimburse the cost of developing, presenting, or providing any response to a Solicitation, except as required by statute. Offers submitted for consideration should be prepared simply and economically, providing adequate information in a straightforward and concise manner.
- 16. DEFAULT IN ONE INSTALLMENT TO CONSTITUTE TOTAL BREACH: The Contractor must deliver conforming materials in each installment or lot of this Contract and may not substitute nonconforming materials. Delivery of nonconforming materials or a default of any nature, at the option of the County, will constitute breach of the Contract as a whole. Noncompliance is subject to STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS, "TERMINATION OF CONTRACT."
- 17. EXCLUSIVE POSSESSION: All work of authorship, including but not limited to calculations, designs, drawings, specifications, graphics, text, and all copy writable works resulting from this Contract will become property of the County. Additionally, all services, information, computer program elements, reports, plans, specifications, and other deliverables which may be created under this Contract are the sole property of the County. Property of the County must not be used or released by the Contractor or any other person except with prior written permission from the County.
- 18. FORCE MAJEURE: Except for payment of sums due, neither party is liable to the other nor deemed in default under this Contract if and to the extent that such party's performance of this Contract is prevented by reason of Force Majeure. The term "Force Majeure" means a major occurrence that is beyond the control of the party affected and occurs without its fault or negligence. Force Majeure will not include late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a Force Majeure occurrence in accordance with this Force Majeure term and condition.
  - 18.1.If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by Force Majeure, the delayed party must immediately notify the other party in writing of such a delay at the commencement thereof, and further specify the causes of the delay in the notice. Such notice must be hand-

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PAGE **27** OF **36** 

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

delivered, mailed certified-return receipt, or emailed and must make a specific reference to this article, thereby invoking its provisions. The delayed party must make all reasonable efforts to overcome conditions causing delay as soon as practicable and must notify the other party in writing when it has done so. The time of completion will be extended by contract modification for a period of time equal to the time required to overcome the Force Majeure or the time required to overcome the effects of the Force Majeure that delayed the party from performing in accordance with this Contract.

- 19. GRATUITIES: The County may, by written notice to the Contractor, cancel this Contract if it is found that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the Contractor or any agent or representative of the Contractor, to any officer or employee of the County. In the event this Contract is canceled by the County pursuant to this provision, the County is entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold from the Contractor the amount of the gratuity.
- 20. INDEMNIFICATION: To the extent allowed by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Mohave County, and its officers, officials, agents, supervisors, and employees (hereinafter referred to as "Indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys' fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as "Claims") for bodily injury (including death), personal injury, or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or subcontractors. This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of, or recovered under, the Workers' Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such contractor to conform to any federal. state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims. It is agreed that Contractor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable. In consideration of the award of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against Mohave County, its officers, officials, agents, supervisors, and employees for losses arising from the work performed by the Contractor for Mohave County.

The scope of this indemnity will not be limited by the Insurance Requirements contained herein.

Mohave County Risk Management approved 04/07/2021 BS

- **21. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT**: Each party will act in its individual capacity and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venturer, or associate of the other. An employee or agent of one party will not be deemed or construed to be the employee or agent of the other party for any purpose whatsoever.
  - 21.1.The Contractor is not entitled to compensation in the form of salaries, paid vacation, or sick days by the County. Such days do not accumulate for the Contractor's use at a later date.
  - 21.2. The County will not provide any insurance coverage to the Contractor, including Worker's Compensation coverage. The Contractor is advised that taxes or social security payments will not be withheld from a County payment issued hereunder and that Contractor should make arrangements to directly pay such expenses, if any.
- 22. INTERPRETATION PAROL EVIDENCE: This Contract is intended by the parties to be the final expression of their agreement and is intended also as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement. No course of prior dealings between the parties and no usage of the trade is relevant to supplement or explain any term used in this Contract. Acceptance or acquiescence in a course of performance rendered under this Contract is not relevant to determine the meaning of this Contract

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

PAGE 28 OF 36

even though the accepting or acquiescing party has knowledge of the nature of the performance and opportunity to object.

- **23. ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION:** In accordance with A.R.S. § 35-393.01, "the Company certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the Contract to not engage in a boycott of Israel." Violation of this certification by the Contractor may result in action by the County up to and including termination of this Agreement.
- **24. LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE**: To the extent applicable, pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. § 41-4401, the Contractor hereby warrants that it is in material compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and with the E-verify requirements set forth in A.R.S. § 23-214 (A).
- **25. LEGAL REMEDIES**: All claims and controversies regarding this Contract are subject to the Mohave County Procurement Code and any applicable Arizona Revised Statutes.
- **26. LICENSES:** The Contractor must maintain in current status all Federal, State, and local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the Contractor as applicable to this Contract.
- **27. LIENS:** All materials, services, and other deliverables supplied to the County under this Contract must be free of all liens other than the security interest held by the Contractor until payment in full is made by the County. Upon request of the County, the Contractor must provide a formal release of all liens.
- 28. MOHAVE COUNTY SEAL USE: Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-251.17, a firm or individual is not permitted to use, display or otherwise employ a copy or other resemblance of the Mohave County seal without obtaining approval from Mohave County Board of Supervisors.
- **29. NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT:** Any contract resulting from this Solicitation will be awarded with the understanding and agreement that it is for the sole convenience of Mohave County. The County reserves the right to obtain like goods or services from another source when necessary.
- 30. PATENT INFRINGEMENT: The County will advise the Contractor of any impending patent suit and provide all information available. The Contractor must defend any suit or proceeding brought against the County based on a claim that any equipment, or any part thereof, furnished under this Contract constitutes an infringement of any patent, and the Contractor must pay all damages and costs awarded therein, excluding incidental and consequential damages, against the County. In case said equipment, or any part thereof, is in such suit held to constitute infringement and use of said equipment or part in enjoined, the Contractor must, at its own expense and at its option, provide for the County either the right to continue using said equipment or part, replacement non-infringing equipment, or modification to the infringing equipment that renders it non-infringing.
- 31. PAYMENT: When submitting an invoice for payment, the Contractor must include the applicable Purchase Order number on the invoice. No invoice may be submitted until the Contractor has supplied the materials or services covered by the relevant purchase order. If the Contractor is unable to fulfill the entire scope of a purchase order, the Contractor may submit an invoice for the portion of the materials or services supplied during a given billing period. Once the backordered or incomplete portion of a purchase order's scope is shipped or completed, the Contract may send a new invoice for the remainder to be paid. The Contractor must submit invoices within 30 days of the date of delivery or completion, whichever is later.
  - 31.1.The County will make every effort to process payment for the purchase of materials or services within twenty-one (21) calendar days after receipt of materials or services and a correctly and adequately formatted and documented invoice.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 29 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

**32. PROJECT COMPLIANCE**: It is the Contractor's sole responsibility to comply with all applicable Federal, State, and Local regulations. At a minimum, the project, materials, or services provided under this Contract must comply with all applicable Federal, State, and Local regulations and any amendments thereto that are adopted during the life of this Contract.

- 33. PROTECTION OF GOVERNMENT BUILDINGS: The Contractor must use reasonable care to avoid damaging existing buildings, equipment, and vegetation (such as trees, shrubs, and grass) on County property. If the Contractor fails to do so and damages such buildings, equipment and vegetation, the Contractor must replace or repair the damage at no expense to the County, in coordination with County staff and as approved by the Procurement Director. If the Contractor fails to or refuses to make such repair or replacement, the Contractor is liable for the cost thereof, which may be deducted from the contract price.
- **34. PROTEST PROCEDURE:** Should an Offeror believe that the County has not properly followed the selection procedures as outlined in the Mohave County Procurement Code, the firm may file a protest as described in the Mohave County Procurement Code.
  - 34.1.A protest must be submitted in writing and will be filed with the Procurement Director. A protest of a Solicitation must be received at the Procurement Office before the solicitation opening date. A protest of a proposed award or of an award must be filed within ten (10) days after the protestor knows or should have known the basis of the protest. A protest must include:
    - 34.1.1. The name, address, and telephone number of the protestor;
    - 34.1.2. The signature of the protestor or its representative;
    - 34.1.3. Identification of the solicitation number;
    - 34.1.4. A detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents.
- 35. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW: Each and every provision of law and any clause required by law to be included in this Contract is read and enforced as though it were included herein. If through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon the application of either party the Contract must forthwith be physically amended to make such insertion or correction.
- **36. PUBLIC HEARINGS**: The Contractor must, upon request, attend any public hearing on matters related to the scope of services set forth in this Contract.
- **37. PUBLIC RECORD**: All Offers submitted in response to this Solicitation become the property of the County and become a matter of public record available for review subsequent to award. Any information or materials deemed proprietary must be specifically designated as such and may be maintained as a confidential record at the discretion of the County.
- **38. RECORDS**: Internal control over all financial transactions related to this Contract must be in accordance with sound fiscal policies. The County may, at reasonable times and places, audit the books and records of Contractor or any and all of Contractor's subcontractors. Said audit will be limited to this Contract and its scope of services.
- **39. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES**: It is clearly understood that each party acts in its individual capacity and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venture, or associate of the other. An employee or agent of one party will not be deemed or construed to be the employee or agent of the other party for any purpose whatsoever. The Contractor is advised that taxes or social security payments will not be withheld from a County payment issued hereunder and that Contractor should make arrangements to directly pay such expenses, if any.

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

PAGE 30 OF 36

**40. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE:** Whenever one party to this Contract in good faith has reason to question the other party's intent to perform, the former party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform. In the event that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation with this Contract.

- **41. RIGHT TO INSPECT:** The County may, at reasonable times, and at the County's expense, inspect the place of business of a Contractor or subcontractor which is related to the performance of any contract as awarded or to be awarded.
- 42. RIGHTS AND REMEDIES: No provision in this document or in the Offer will be construed, expressly or by implication, as a waiver by either party of any existing or future right or remedy available by law to seek the cure of any claim, default, or breach of contract. The failure of either party to insist upon the strict performance of any term or condition of the Contract or delay the exercise of any right or remedy provided in the Contract or by law will not be deemed a waiver to such rights or remedies. Furthermore, the acceptance of materials or services and delivery of obligations imposed by this Contract or by law does not constitute a waiver of any right or remedy provided by this Contract or by law, nor will such an act constitute a waiver of any right of either party to insist upon the strict performance of the Contract.
- **43. SEVERABILITY:** The provisions of this Contract are severable at the sole discretion of the County to the extent that any provision or application held to be invalid will not affect any other provision or application of the Contract which may remain in effect without the invalid provision or application.
- **44. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED**: The Contractor is not authorized to ship materials under reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of the materials. Noncompliance will be subject to **STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS**, "**TERMINATION OF CONTRACT**."
- 45. SUBCONTRACTS: No subcontract will be entered into by the Contractor with any other party to furnish any of the materials or services specified herein without the advance written approval of the County's Procurement Director. All subcontracts must comply with Federal and State laws and regulations which are applicable to the services covered by the subcontract and must include all the terms and conditions set forth herein which will apply with equal force to the subcontract, as if the subcontractor were the Contractor referred to herein. The Contractor is responsible for contract performance whether or not subcontractors are employed. The County will not unreasonably withhold approval and will notify the Contractor of the County's position within fifteen (15) days of receipt of written notice by the Contractor.
- **46. SUBSEQUENT EMPLOYMENT**: The County may terminate this Contract pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-511 without penalty or further obligation if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting, or creating the Contract, on behalf of the County is or becomes, at any time while the Contract or any extension of the Contract is in effect, an employee of, or a Contractor to any other party to this Contract with respect to the subject matter of the Contract. Such cancellation takes effect when written notice from the Procurement Director is received by the parties to this Contract, unless the notice specifies a later time.
- **47. SUSPENSION OF WORK**: The County may order the Contractor, in writing, to suspend, delay, or interrupt all or any part of the work under this Contract for the period of time that the County determines appropriate for the convenience of the County.
  - 47.1.The Contractor agrees that no charges or claims for damages will be made against the County for any delays or hindrances during the progress of this Contract. Such delays or hindrances, if any will be covered by an extension of time for such reasonable period as mutually agreed upon between the parties. It is agreed and understood, however, that permission to proceed with the

#### **REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03**

PAGE 31 OF 36 PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

Contract after the established completion date, will not be construed as a waiver by the County of any of the rights herein.

- **48. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT**: Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, this Contract may be terminated at any time by mutual written consent. The County may, with or without cause, terminate this Contract in whole or in part upon giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor. If this Contract is terminated, the County will be liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this Contract for services rendered and materials accepted by the County before the effective date of termination, unless the subject items are nonconforming. If the materials or services for which the County would otherwise be liable to pay are nonconforming, STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS, "ACCEPTANCE" governs.
  - 48.1.The County may terminate this Contract in whole or, from time to time, in part, for the County's convenience or because of the failure of the Contractor to fulfill the Contract obligations. Upon receipt of the notice of termination, the Contractor must:
    - 48.1.1. Immediately discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and
    - 48.1.2. Deliver to the Department of Procurement all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials accumulated in performing this Contract, whether completed or in process.
  - 48.2.If the termination is for the convenience of the County, the County will make an equitable adjustment in the contract price but will allow no anticipated profit on unperformed services.
  - 48.3.If the termination is for failure of the Contractor to fulfill the Contract obligations, the County may complete the work by contract or otherwise, and the Contractor is liable for any additional cost incurred by the County.
  - 48.4.If, after termination for failure to fulfill Contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor has not failed, the rights and obligations of the parties are the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the County.
  - 48.5. The rights and remedies of the County provided in this clause are in addition to any other rights or remedies provided by law or under this Contract.
  - 48.6. Each payment obligation of the County created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of County, State and Federal funds which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation. If funds are not allocated by the County and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the contract period for the service may be terminated by the County at the end of the period for which funds are available. The County will notify Contractor at the earliest possible time which service will or may be affected by a shortage of funds. No penalty will accrue to the County in the event this provision is exercised, and the County will not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of termination under this paragraph.
- **49. TIME RECORDS**: The Contractor must maintain complete, current and daily records covering all hours actually worked on this project by each employee. The County reserves the right to audit and examine such records at any time during the progress of this Contract. The County may withhold payment if such documentation is found by the County to be incomplete or erroneous.
- **50. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS:** The title and risk of loss of material or services will not pass to the County until the County actually receives the material or services at the point of delivery, unless otherwise provided within this Contract.

**REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03** 

PAGE **32** OF **36** 

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

51. WARRANTIES: Contractor warrants that all material or service delivered under this Contract will conform to the specifications of this Contract. Mere receipt of shipment of the material or service specified, and any inspection incidental thereto by the County, does not alter or affect the obligations of the Contractor or the rights of the County under the foregoing warranties. Additional warranty requirements may be set forth in this Contract.

#### **REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03**

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

PAGE **33** OF **36** 

# **OFFER FORM**

#### **TO MOHAVE COUNTY:**

The Undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms, scope of work, conditions, specifications, and amendments in the Request for Proposal.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST:	
Mohave County employee is also an owner, corpor "Yes" (County employee is associated with your	et of interest, all Offerors <u>must disclose</u> if any current rate officer, or employee of your business. Indicate either business), or "No." If yes, provide the name(s) of the y employee(s) hold within your business (reference
	please provide the current Mohave County employee
CONTACT:	ion (include additional pages if necessary) For CLARIFICATION OF THIS OFFER:
Signature of Person Legally Authorized to Sign on Behalf of Company	y Name (First, Middle Initial, Last)
Printed Name and Title	Printed Name and Title
Company Address	Direct Telephone (Including Area Code)
City / State / Zip Code	Mobile Telephone (Including Area Code)
Telephone Number (Including Area Code)	Email Address
Email Address	Company Web Address
ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER:	
The offer is hereby accepted.	
	aterials and/or services specified in RFP# 21P03, ns, amendments, etc., and Contractor's Offer as
Contractor has been cautioned not to commence a under this contract until Contractor receives this s	ny billable work or to provide any material and/or service igned sheet, or a written notice to proceed.
Awarded this day of	, 2021
BUSTER D. JOHNSON, CHAIRMAN	

MOHAVE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 34 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787 Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

# FORM 1 - TITLE PAGE

Service Provider:		
Please submit all information requested herein		
Organization / Agency / Company	Name:	
Contact Person's Name:		
Contact Person's Title:		
Contact Telephone (include Area (	Code):	
Contact Email Address:		
Mailing Address:	ailing Address:	
Street Address if different from Ma Address:	reet Address if different from Mailing ddress:	
Organization / Agency / Company Website:		
Applying As (check one of the following As (check one of the f	owing):	
Individual	Single Agency	
Consortium of Partners Number of Consortium Partners		
Consortium Partner(s) Name(s):		
_		

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 35 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787 Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

# Form 2 - References

## **SERVICES PROVIDER'S REFERENCES**

Reference #1
Agency Name:
Contract Dates:
Agency Address:
Contact Name and Title:
Telephone Number with Area Code:
Business Email Address:
Reference #2
Agency Name:
Contract Dates:
Agency Address:
Contact Name and Title:
Telephone Number with Area Code:
Business Email Address:
Reference #3
Agency Name:
Contract Dates:
Agency Address:
Contact Name and Title:
Telephone Number with Area Code:
Business Email Address:

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 21P03 PAGE 36 OF 36

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: MORGAN MICHAELS T: (928) 753-0752 Option 1 / FAX: (928) 753-0787

Morgan.Michaels@mohavecounty.us

# Form 3 - Price Proposal

# 21P03 MEDICAL EXAMINER SERVICES PRICE PROPOSAL

Price proposals shall be all inclusive in their ability to fulfill the Scope of Services of the Contract. The Medical Examiner shall be required to be fully operational including the need to provide all resources for delivery of services.

Offerors may offer to receive an initial lump sum payment, with the remainder of the award to be amortized over the initial contract term (5 years).

Fees stated shall be a complete billable price. No additional travel, per diem, taxes, fuel surcharges, etc. shall be allowed.

Description	Unit of Measure	Unit Price
First Monthly Installment: Shall Include Initial Set-up Fee, if applicable	Lump Sum	\$
Monthly Fee for Services:	Monthly	\$